
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Environmental Financial Advisory Board 

 
Public Meeting Minutes 

January 24–26, 2023 
 

Location: In-Person and Virtual  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by Edward H. Chu, EPA Designated Federal Officer  
Certified as accurate by Kerry E. O'Neill, Chair, Environmental Financial Advisory Board  
 
 
 
NOTE AND DISCLAIMER: The minutes that follow reflect a summary of remarks and conversation during the meeting. 
Such ideas, suggestions, and deliberations do not necessarily reflect consensus advice from the Board. Formal advice 
and recommendations may be found in the final advisory reports or letters prepared and transmitted to the agency 
following the public meetings. Moreover, the Board advises that additional information sources be consulted in 
cases where any concern may exist about statistics or any other information contained within the minutes.  



 

Contents 
Purpose ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

Day 1 ................................................................................................................................... 4 
Welcome, Member Roll Call, and Review of Agenda ............................................................... 4 
EFAB Member Recognition ....................................................................................................... 4 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Charge Update .................................................................... 4 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Program Update .................................................................. 5 
Welcome From EPA’s Chief Financial Officer and EPA Budget Update .................................... 7 
Update On Other Recent EFAB Charge Deliverables ................................................................ 8 
State Revolving Fund Update Briefing ...................................................................................... 9 
Creating Resilient Water Utilities Initiative ............................................................................. 11 
Adjourn ................................................................................................................................... 12 

Day 2 ................................................................................................................................. 13 
Welcome and Roll Call ............................................................................................................ 13 
EPA FACA Coordination ........................................................................................................... 13 
EFAB Chair's Corner................................................................................................................. 17 
Summary of Other Potential Charges ..................................................................................... 18 
Introduction to Board Breakout Discussions on Proposed Water Charges ............................ 19 
Adjourn ................................................................................................................................... 20 

Day 3 ................................................................................................................................. 21 
Welcome and Roll Call ............................................................................................................ 21 
Proposed Water Charges ........................................................................................................ 21 
Public Comment ...................................................................................................................... 22 
DFO Final Thoughts ................................................................................................................. 23 
Adjourn ................................................................................................................................... 23 

 
Appendix 1. Federal Register Announcement ........................................................................ 24 
Appendix 2. Agenda ................................................................................................................ 26 
Appendix 3. EFAB Members .................................................................................................... 28 
Appendix 4. Creating Resilient Water Utilities Initiative Slides .............................................. 32 
Appendix 5. NEJAC Slides ........................................................................................................ 37 
Appendix 6. Written Public Comment .................................................................................... 42 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

3 

Purpose 
The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Financial Advisory Board (EFAB or Board) is an advisory 
committee chartered under the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) to provide advice and 
recommendations to EPA on creative approaches to funding environmental programs, projects, and 
activities. The purpose of the meeting was for the EFAB to provide updates on the Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Fund charge and previous EFAB deliverables, consider possible future advisory topics, and 
receive updates on EPA activities.  
 
The meeting was announced in the Federal Register (see appendix 1).  
 
Please see appendix 2 for the agenda and appendix 3 for EFAB member names and affiliations. 
 

  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

4 

Day 1 
Welcome, Member Roll Call, and Review of Agenda 

Welcome 
Edward H. Chu, EFAB Designated Federal Officer (DFO) 
Kerry O’Neill, EFAB Chair 
 
Roll Call
Ashley Allen Jones, present  
Courtney L. Black, present 
Steven J. Bonafonte, present 
Angela Montoya Bricmont, present 
Matthew T. Brown, present 
Stacy Brown, present 
Theodore Chapman, present 
Albert Cho, present 
Janet Clements, present 
Lori Collins, present 
Zachary Davidson, present 
Jeffrey R. Diehl, present 
Sonja B. Favors, not present 
Phyllis R. Garcia, present 
Eric Hangen, not present 
Edward Henifin, not present 
Barry Hersh, present 
Craig Holland, present 

Craig A. Hrinkevich, present 
Margot Kane, present 
Thomas Karol, present 
George W. Kelly, present 
Gwendolyn Keyes Fleming, present 
Cynthia Koehler, not present 
Colleen Kokas, present 
Joanne V. Landau, present 
Lawrence Lujan, present 
MaryAnna H. Peavey, present 
Dennis A. Randolph, present 
Eric Rothstein, present 
Sanjiv Sinha, present 
William Stannard, present 
Marilyn Waite, present 
David L. Wegner, present 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau, present 
David Zimmer, present 
 

 
 
EFAB Member Recognition 
Ed Chu said that the following six EFAB members are reaching their six-year term limit this summer: 
Theodore Chapman, Craig Holland, Eric Rothstein, Edward Henifin, William Stannard, and David Zimmer. 
Ed Chu noted that nine sets of recommendations and a letter to EPA were delivered in their tenure. He 
thanked the members for their service and presented them with certificates; they will receive official 
letters from the EPA Administrator to thank them for their service to public after they formally roll off 
the Board. 
 
 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Charge Update 
Kerry O’Neill | EFAB Chair 
Alejandra Nunez | EPA Deputy Assistant Administrator for Mobile Sources 
Tim Profeta | Senior Advisor, EPA Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards 
 
Alejandra Nunez acknowledged the speed at which committee members deliberated and developed 
their guidance to EPA on the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GHGRF) charge. She said EPA enjoyed the 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

5 

process and learned a lot from the group, and the workgroup provided robust guidance to EPA. In 
addition to the guidance provided by the EFAB workgroup, EPA had issued a Request for Information 
(RFI) and received hundreds of comments, which were summarized and considered by EPA staff. She 
said the process formally concluded at end of the year. 
 
Tim Profeta thanked everyone for what he called an "incredible display of public service." He said that 
EFAB's input has been merged with RFI input into a robust playbook for EPA. He asked the group for 
their feedback on the process. 
 
Ashley Allen Jones said that she found the narrowness and explicitness of EPA's charge questions very 
helpful. It was clear what EPA wanted the group to answer, which facilitated a useful response. 
 
Lori Collins said that knowing they weren't trying to produce formal recommendations eased the 
pressure and allowed the group to proceed quickly. 
 
Margot Kane appreciated that EPA spent the time and joined in as if they were workgroup members. 
She said she sensed EPA's support and earnest effort. 
 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau said she appreciated the EPA team's willingness to hear all aspects of feedback. 
 
Kerry O'Neill noted the process of producing a letter and voting on the content prior to finalizing was 
unusual. She asked Board members if they had any feedback on that.  
 
Lori Collins said she did not have issues with the process; everyone had an opportunity to have input. 
 
George Kelly said that it was helpful under the circumstances to have developed an options analysis and 
not formal recommendations. He said that the focus provided by Tim Profeta and Alejandra Nunez was 
helpful and should consider be considered for future efforts. 
 
David Wegner concurred that EPA's guidance facilitated the process. He asked if this will be issued in the 
Federal Register and if there will be opportunities for the EFAB to provide additional feedback.  
 
Tim Profeta said the next speakers will address that topic. 
 
Lori Collins asked if Tim Profeta and Alejandra Nunez could stay involved. 
 
Ed Chu said Tim and Alejandra are always reachable. He added that there is a possibility that EPA will 
follow up with EFAB. He urged EPA and EFAB to stay in touch about GHGRF issues. 
 
 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Program Update 
Dan Utech | EPA Chief of Staff  
Jahi Wise | Senior Advisor to the EPA Administrator and Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Acting 
Director  
Alejandra Nunez | EPA Deputy Assistant Administrator for Mobile Sources 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

6 

Dan Utech thanked the EFAB on behalf of Administrator Regan. He recalled that the charge was finalized 
in mid-October and EFAB provided input in a matter of months. He thanked Ed Chu, Kerry O'Neill, the 
workgroup chairs, and EPA staff. 
 
He reiterated that EPA posted an RFI and received hundreds of responses, and the agency facilitated 
dozens of stakeholder discussions. He thanked members of the public who may have participated in 
those sessions. He said that the GHGRF program is an unprecedented opportunity for our country to 
promote clean air and deliver on the promise of the legislation, especially in low-income and 
disadvantaged communities. 
 
Jahi Wise thanked everyone and said there is a big opportunity to accelerate the decarbonization of the 
economy and to do it in a way that advances equity and justice.  
 
Regarding what's next, he said EPA is looking forward to rolling out program decisions and coming back 
to the EFAB to tap their expertise. 
 
Jeffrey Diehl asked if the Board could have done anything differently to be more helpful to EPA. 
 
Dan Utech said, in short, no. He said that because the process was accelerated, EPA may come back to 
EFAB for additional input. He asked the Board and asked if they wanted to add or amend anything to the 
document they had submitted. 
 
Jeffrey Diehl noted that the workgroup would have benefited from having conversations with experts 
outside of the Board.  
 
Jahi Wise said the EFAB's work was incredible and assured the Board that there will be opportunities for 
EFAB to provide more targeted input. 
 
Kerry O'Neill noted that nuances didn't make it onto the page, and the workgroup could brief the team 
from EPA on those nuances. 
 
George Kelly said he would have liked to see more of how the guidance would translate on the ground, 
as well as accountability, measurement, and any options on the contracting side. He said these are 
important issues the workgroup did not have a chance to explore. He inquired about EPA's next steps. 
Dan Utech said the EFAB will hear more in the months to come.  
 
Margot Kane added that it is difficult for communities to bring together and manage different pots of 
funding and that EPA has a unique opportunity to provide complementary funding. 
 
Regarding what projects look like on the ground, Ashley Allen Jones said there is a gap between policy 
and finance, and there is a big opportunity for the EFAB to weigh in on the finance piece of the puzzle. 
Next, she asked what it means to fund technical assistance (TA), which means something different in 
different contexts. She recommended defining the term and examining the value chain of that activity, 
tracking the dollar all the way through and looking for the return.  
 
Kerry O'Neill asked what it looks like on the ground in communities that have historically been left 
behind.  
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

7 

Craig Holland said it is a daunting task to find options for getting the money out in a quick but thoughtful 
way to target disadvantaged communities. Speed is of the essence, but policy must be thoughtful.  
 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau stressed the importance of not locating activities in communities unless the 
community will actually benefit. 
 
Jeffrey Diehl said that, although there is a need for speed, he hopes this is a sustainable capitalization 
scheme. He said there must be not only partnerships but also sustainable channels of investment in 
communities. There must be pipelines and lifelines beyond this particular fund. 
 
Marilyn Waite said there was no silver bullet promoted by the Board, but rather multiple options and 
recipients with and pros and cons for each. She suggested defining disadvantaged community and 
clarifying the beneficiaries, leadership, and what community ownership means, as well as what 
businesses can grow in the green economy. 
 
Lori Collins conveyed the Board's interested in being an ongoing resource for EPA.  
 
 
Welcome From EPA’s Chief Financial Officer and EPA Budget Update 
Faisal Amin | EPA Chief Financial Officer 
 
Faisal Amin said this administration is at its midpoint; as Chief Financial Officer (CFO), he is committed to 
making sure the second half is as successful as the first. He said the next two years will be critical 
regarding how EPA delivers on investments. It is a challenge to get money out and maintain program 
integrity. One of his top priorities is ensuring the public trust. He said the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 
(BIL) and Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) are very important for our nation and future generations.  
 
He shared figures from the Omnibus Appropriations Act, which was signed into law in December. He 
said the agency has $10 billion appropriated, which is a $576 million increase over Fiscal Year (FY) 22. 
This includes the largest budget for environmental justice in EPA history, totaling $108 million in FY23. 
Among other items, the omnibus appropriations include $600 billion for the drinking water crisis in 
Jackson, Mississippi, and $1 billion for hurricane-impacted communities. In addition, the FY23 budget 
sustains support for state and tribal partners, with $4.5 billion in state and tribal assistance grants. He 
said there is $613 million allotted for enforcement and compliance, which had been stagnant for several 
years. 
 
Ted Chapman said that TA is a common topic in his circle. Although grant funds are available, 
communities face barriers pursuing, tracking, and reporting funds. He asked if grant money can be used 
to pay for TA so that disadvantaged communities can overcome barriers, such as auditing.  
 
Faisal Amin said it is hard to hear from potential grantees that they would rather not apply for funding 
because of the burdens or barriers associated with it. He said EPA is looking at options to address the 
issue on the front end and back end. One difficulty is statutory language that limits where EPA can help 
and at what level. 
 
MaryAnna Peavey asked how EPA will staff up to get the funding out. Faisal Amin said EPA is doing its 
best to ramp up. 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

8 

 
Dave Wegner said there is a huge responsibility to ensure that Congress knows what EPA is doing. He 
urged EPA to show the American people where the money is going.  
 
Regarding TA, David Zimmer said early TA will be a key component of whether EPA is successful. He 
suggested that some State Revolving Fund (SRF) grants could be used for TA.  
 
Barry Hersh referred to a media report that EPA is "traumatized and depleted"; he asked about Faisal 
Amin's concerns about maintaining fiscal controls, noting, "A lot of people want to help you spend the 
money." 
 
Faisal Amin replied that with unprecedented funding comes unprecedented oversight. He said EPA is 
enhancing its existing enterprise risk management portfolio and developing new fraud detection 
techniques, such as using technology to flag potential issues.  
 
 
Update On Other Recent EFAB Charge Deliverables 
Edward H. Chu | EFAB Designated Federal Officer 
 
Ed Chu said the next portion of the meeting will be used to update the EFAB on how EPA has used some 
of the Board’s deliverables. 

Opportunity Zones 
Jon Grosshans with EPA’s Office of Policy said that, since receiving feedback, EFAB's advice on staying 
true to its mission and doing better outreach has taken off, with TA and engagement with hard-to-reach 
communities. He said EPA has been acting on the advice provided by EFAB and with partnering with 
communities early on.   
 
Michelle Madley with EPA’s Office of Water iterated that it is an unprecedented opportunity for the 
agency, allowing an increased focus on capacity building and equitable investments. She said EFAB's 
lessons will be incorporated in the agency's TA initiatives.  

Pollution Prevention 
David Widawsky and Allison Thompson from EPA’s Office of Chemical Safety and Pollution Prevention 
provided some background on the charge and the process used by the EFAB Pollution Prevention (P2) 
workgroup.  
 
He added that the timing of last year's engagement was timely because the P2 program has expanded. 
He said EPA met with P2 programs grantees shortly after they received EFAB recommendations and 
incorporated EFAB's insight into a grantee workshop. He said it was a success, so EPA will invest in a 
series of ongoing activities including developing toolkits and working with grantees to implement EFAB's 
insights. He said EPA will focus on grants to disadvantaged communities, endeavoring to bridge gaps 
with insights from the workgroup.  
 
Ashley Allen Jones noted that she had listened in on EPA's call with grantees. She thanked them for 
being a partner on the charge and said she was excited to see him make the presentation to grantees. 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

9 

Stormwater Task Force 
Ellen Tarquinio with EPA’s Water Infrastructure and Resiliency Finance Center said EFAB's stormwater 
work represented a heroic effort on stormwater funding and financing. She thanked members for their 
effort to develop the robust report. Following the report's submission to Congress, the 
recommendations were shared widely.  
 
She noted that one recommendation was for a construction grant program; that is the Overflow and 
Stormwater Grant program, which is a couple of years old and is seeing a lot of progress. 
 
She said recommendations concerning the Section 319 Grant program has helped EPA; the agency has 
done community outreach, implemented pilots, and issued a guide on best practices. Another 
recommendation was to look at restructuring the SRF program. She said that only Congress can 
restructure the SRF, but stormwater is taking a seat at the table. 
 
Ellen Tarquinio said that EPA is working with the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) on 
the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) to advance work on engaging 
communities; she said there is a significant amount of funding. She said EPA is also educating elected 
officials about stormwater funding and financing; there is a learning module coming out as well as a 
workshop series. TA will be front and center; communities and Environmental Finance Centers (EFCs) 
want TA for their stormwater issues, and they will use EFAB's report as guide. She said the case studies 
shared in that report are being pulled out and published separately on the website. 
 
Sanjiv Sinha praised the list of initiatives. He offered his perspective from a time prior to his EFAB 
experience, noting that one challenge is that chief resilience officers typically require wide expertise, but 
it is often shallow. He said he had seen the report and it made his life easier; people use the reports that 
EFAB has produced. 
 
David Zimmer said a lot of what was mentioned is already practiced by SRFs in the country. Existing 
utilities may be able to assume some of the burden of backstopping certain office functions, removing 
that challenge for communities. He added that while green infrastructure is not a magic bullet, there is a 
need for more stormwater funding. He asked about the potential to expand the stormwater program. 
Ellen Tarquinio said that we must ensure stormwater has its fair share of the BIL funding. 
 
Craig Holland warned that, at the state level, more stormwater utilities may open the possibility for 
lawsuits challenging their existence. He said communities need TA to achieve their goals and defend 
against legal challenges. 
 
 
State Revolving Fund Update Briefing 
Wendi Wilkes | EPA Office of Water 
Michael Deane | EPA Clean Water State Revolving Fund  
Joshua Amaris | EPA Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
 
Wendi Wilkes said much new funding is channeled through about 102 longstanding SRF programs. EPA 
has awarded 60% of FY22 BIL SRF capitalization grants to 47 states and three tribes and territories, 
totaling $4.8 billion. She said EPA is focused on helping disadvantaged communities (as defined by 
states) access funding in the form of forgivable loans. Regarding TA for communities new to SRF, EPA is 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

10 

focused on setting up TA in Year 1 by directing $150 million to EFCs for TA. She said TA work already 
started, such as with Closing the Wastewater Infrastructure Gap initiative. She noted that they will soon 
announce a pilot project to start lead service line replacement.  
 
In Year 2, they will build on the momentum and share lessons learned. A key focus is improving on how 
funding is distributed to and impacting disadvantaged communities. They will work on increasing 
publicly available and accessible information, addressing a broad range of issues, from what is an IUP 
[intended use plan] to how to provide public comments. Also in Year 2, they will collect more 
information on state processes to elevate the story of water infrastructure.  
 
Dennis Randolph asked whether all states are sincere about defining "disadvantaged community". He 
asked if they have seen first-time communities taking part so far. He noted that climate change is 
making the problem of providing water worse and asked how they will handle the water challenge.   
 
Wendi Wilkes replied that not all states have definitions that need updating, but TA may help those who 
would benefit from having a new definition. She said it is not a small thing to redefine "disadvantaged 
community". In Year 1, she said, they published a report on drinking water in disadvantaged 
communities that shares best practices. Regarding question of first timers, she said it will take time to 
learn how many of these communities applied and whether they were funded. Regarding climate 
change, she said all infrastructure they are building should be responsive to climate change. They 
brought a climate lens to all the funding.  
 
Michael Deane added it is easier for some states than others to redefine terms, and the process is 
ongoing. Regarding the climate issue, he said it needs to be a part of everything. There is a focus on 
using the SRF for water supply issues; peer-to-peer support is useful to states, and so is sharing what 
works. He said there is a lot going on, especially with BIL funds to make sure states hear about good 
practices. 
 
Sanjiv Sinha said TA is crucial to the success of the BIL but noted that EFCs vary greatly in their 
sophistication. He suggested ensuring that monitoring and accountability is in place so taxpayers across 
the country may benefit. 
 
David Zimmer noted that each state's governor can dictate priorities for each state. He asked what 
happens to funds that aren't disbursed in Year 1. Wendi Wilkes said that for every pot of FY funding, 
states have that year and the following FY to apply for and receive funds; unallocated funding will be 
reallocated using the same process as regular SRF monies.  
 
MaryAnna Peavey observed that, because of threshold rates, a lot of new communities now qualify as 
disadvantaged. 
 
Al Cho said there had been talk in water sector of projects that are not just shovel ready but shovel 
worthy, and he hasn't heard that phrase recently. He asked how EPA ensures investment in innovative 
projects. Wendi replied it is a policy priority to bring water systems up to date. She acknowledged that 
there were standard infrastructure projects that were ready to go. Although standard, they may have 
innovative components, such as advanced cybersecurity, that isn't necessarily evident through the 
project description. 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

11 

Michael Deane said that states can incentivize innovation and it can be encouraged; a lot depends on 
communities coming forward with these projects. He said there is an opportunity for the TA program to 
help communities, and he observed that innovation can be high tech or low tech. However, EPA can't 
mandate through the SRF program. 
 
David Zimmer said innovation is almost impossible. Despite cost\benefit projections, we may not know if 
an innovation is successful until years in the future. If the innovation is unproven, it likely won't get 
funded with public monies.  
 
Kerry O'Neill suggested that demonstration programs can help change the dynamic.  
 
 
Creating Resilient Water Utilities Initiative 
Curt Baranowski | Office of Water 
 
Note: Curt Baranowski's slides are in appendix 4. 
 
Curt Baranowski said the Creating Resilient Water Utilities (CRWU) initiative is focused on needs of 
water utilities from a climate change perspective. He gave some background on the history of the 
CRWU, beginning with safety concerns that emerged from the 9/11 terrorist event and expanding after 
Hurricane Katrina. The initiative now includes making climate change data useable and useful for water 
utilities.  
 
CRWU provides the water sector (including stormwater, drinking water, and wastewater) with an array 
on online tools. Key resources include a Resilient Strategies Guide, which helps utilities plan for climate 
change in their specific area and determine priorities depending on where they are in the process. The 
guide also provides adaptive measures utilities can take, as well as case studies and potential funding 
sources. 
 
Another key tool is the Climate Resilience Evaluation and Awareness Tool (CREAT), a true risk 
assessment tool for water utilities that facilitates in-depth analysis of climate impact. The tool generates 
a report using climate change projection data for 2023 and 2050. This tool was built in coordination with 
several water utilities. The tools five modules are 

1. Climate Awareness 
2. Scenario Development 
3. Consequences and Assets 
4. Adaptation Planning, and  
5. Risk Assessment.  

 
CREAT provides users not with a single solution but with a variety of adaptation scenarios to consider. 
 
Lori Collins asked if utilities use the assessment tool internally or hire consultants. Curt Baranowski said 
many utilities are simply trying to think through the next year; it's difficult for them to think through 
several years into the future. EPA has doubled TA efforts this year, and BIL funding may help. But it's a 
challenge to get people to want to invest time into that effort.  
 

https://www.epa.gov/crwu/climate-resilience-evaluation-and-awareness-tool-creat-risk-assessment-application-water


Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

12 

Marilyn Waite asked about the data used to create modeling. Curt Baranowski said they use historical 
data on storm surge, stream flow, and climate scenarios from National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration (NOAA), United States Geological Survey (USGS), and other federal agencies. He said 
most data are from the 2018 National Climate Assessment (NCA), which will be updated based on the 
2022 NCA. He noted that they have fully documented the methodology; there is no black box.  
He noted that, in the past, EPA did not stay in touch with utilities, but going forward they will follow 
assessments with virtual training and TA to help utilities implement climate-related adaptive measures.   
 
Ted Chapman noted that the vulnerability self-assessment required of most utilities does not include 
climate change. He asked if it would be helpful to have a recommendation from Board to put teeth into 
resilience and risk planning. Curt Baranowski agreed on the concept and said the law is agnostic on 
climate and will not allow EPA to do that.  
 
Jeffrey Diehl said climate resiliency got a lot of attention in Rhode Island in 2010; not just storm surge 
but riverine flooding, as well. He said the question is how to fund climate resiliency and not on the back 
of ratepayers. 
 
Angela Bricmont asked if EPA knew why people would go through the assessment and then not take the 
next step. Curt Baranowski said that utilities are challenged with time, money, pressures of day-to-day 
responsibilities, and lack of staff. He said they are planning on learning more from utilities about 
barriers.  
 
David Zimmer said there is a disconnect between growth and resiliency, such as a loss of acreage for 
development if cities are planning for sea level rise. Without teeth, taking steps is difficult.  
 
Stacy Brown asked if the model considers inland threats. Curt Baranowski said yes, there are relevant 
data for utilities throughout the country. He added that there is a tremendous amount of data and case 
studies. Stacy Brown asked if cyber issues are addressed. Curt Baranowski said no, the tool is about 
climate, but America's Water and Infrastructure Act (AWIA) focuses on natural disasters and terrorism.  
 
Ed Chu reminded the EFAB that the body can make recommendations to EPA outside of a formal charge. 
 
 
Adjourn 
Ed Chu adjourned the meeting.   



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

13 

Day 2  
Welcome and Roll Call 
Ed Chu opened the meeting and welcomed members back.  
 
Kerry O’Neill conducted the roll call and noted the day's agenda will be flexible and the public meeting 
will likely end early to allow time for workgroups to meet.  
 

 
Roll Call
Ashley Allen Jones, present  
Courtney L. Black, present 
Steven J. Bonafonte, present 
Angela Montoya Bricmont, present 
Matthew T. Brown, present 
Stacy Brown, present 
Theodore Chapman, present 
Albert Cho, present 
Janet Clements, present 
Lori Collins, present 
Zachary Davidson, present 
Jeffrey R. Diehl, present 
Sonja B. Favors, not present 
Phyllis R. Garcia, present 
Eric Hangen, not present 
Edward Henifin, not present 
Barry Hersh, present 
Craig Holland, present 

Craig A. Hrinkevich, present 
Margot Kane, present 
Thomas Karol, present 
George W. Kelly, present 
Gwendolyn Keyes Fleming, present 
Cynthia Koehler, not present 
Colleen Kokas, present 
Joanne V. Landau, present 
Lawrence Lujan, not present 
MaryAnna H. Peavey, present 
Dennis A. Randolph, present 
Eric Rothstein, present 
Sanjiv Sinha, present 
William Stannard, present 
Marilyn Waite, present 
David L. Wegner, present 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau, present 
David Zimmer, present 
 

 
 
EPA FACA Coordination 
April Baptiste | Colgate University, National Environmental Justice Advisory Committee member 
Rod Snyder | EPA Agriculture Advisor Farm, Ranch, and Rural Communities Committee  
Jalonne White-Newsome | Senior Director for Environmental Justice, White House Environmental 
Justice Advisory Council  

National Environmental Justice Advisory Committee (NEJAC) 
Note: April Baptiste's slides are in appendix 5.  
 
April Baptiste said the recent NEJAC recommendations made four primary requests to EPA: 

1. A response as to how each of the sections that are provided in the document are being 
implemented. 

2. A roadmap that outlines how EPA implementation of Justice40 objectives will be conducted. 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

14 

3. A presentation of foreseen challenges or barriers toward ensuring timely prioritization of 
funding and investments to environmental justice communities across short-, medium-, and 
long-term timeframes. 

4. A consultation with the NEJAC on the ways in which finance and investment opportunities in 
communities with legacy environmental justice problems will result in environmental and 
economic improvements for these communities. 

 
She shared the five sections of their letter and key recommendations, which are summarized below. 
 
Section 1. Defining investment and benefits in environmental justice communities. These 
recommendations emphasized the need to co-create definitions and to keep race and ethnicity central 
to the definition of disadvantaged communities.  
 
Section 2. Prioritizing investments and benefits in environmental justice communities. This section 
recommends that funding go directly to environmental justice communities, such as by designating 
nongovernmental organizations (NGOs) from these communities as principal investigators, as well as 
developing regional environmental justice advisory councils. 
 
Section 3. Assessing/determining and distributing investments and benefits in environmental justice 
communities. In this section, the NEJAC recommends that environmental justice communities are 
equipped to address their own concerns, such as by building capacity and clarifying how the Thriving 
Communities Technical Assistance Centers (TCTACS) will bolster TA to communities.  
 
Section 4. Measuring and tracking investments in environmental justice communities. The NEJAC wants 
to see how investments and benefits are measured and tracked, as well as challenges and barriers to 
create system to creating accountability. Recommendations centered on issuing strong guidelines to 
states to include environmental justice objectives related to their federal funding, measuring 
performance for any center meant to build capacity in environmental justice communities, and 
addressing climate change issue with measurable outcomes. 
 
Section 5. Mapping and reporting investments and benefits in environmental justice communities. 
Increased transparency was the focus of this section, and recommendations included developing a 
funding visualization tool and improving current tools. 
 
Dennis Randolph said his concern about TA is that trainers must understand environmental justice 
concerns. He said TA is a broad topic with a lot of parts. April Baptiste agreed and said they pushed EPA 
to define TA and recognize the expertise of activists within environmental justice communities.  
 
Marilyn Waite asked if NEJAC had engaged with community banks, credit unions, minority deposit 
institutions, and other banks providing green loans. April Baptiste said she would bring it up at next 
meeting. 
 
George Kelly said the group has just analyzed options under the GHGRF, and there are always challenges 
with how to define low-income and disadvantaged communities. April Baptiste said her workgroup 
spent a great deal of time thinking about it, and considered incorporating cumulative impacts, health, 
and other areas. They didn't provide a model definition but pushed EPA to co-create a definition with 
communities. 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

15 

Ted Chapman asked for more information about the NEJAC's efforts to push for not just removing a 
negative but for going beyond the bare minimum. He asked if they defined success factors. April 
Baptiste said that is the direction the conversation is headed, and they looked at direct, indirect, and 
cumulative impacts and benefits to addressing environmental justice concern. For example, if states fix 
lead services lines in the street but can't work from the street to the home, is the benefit actually 
delivered? She said the community must be included in defining success indicators and noted that 
NEJAC had more questions than answers for EPA at this stage.  
 
Ashley Allen Jones said NEJAC may be interested in looking at the EFAB's GHGRF workgroup products 
and would be able to follow up by phone to pass along what they uncovered. April said NEJAC's finance 
and investment workgroup has been dissolved but the work continues, and the information would be 
appreciated. 
 
Ed Chu said he will formally engage with NEJAC to follow up on how to work together through formal 
practices. 

Farm, Ranch, and Rural Communities Committee (FRRCC) 
Ed Chu noted that Rod Snyder had met the EFAB in the past and that the FRRCC was re-convened just 
last week. 
 
Rod Snyder said he's excited about the direction the FRRCC is headed. The FACA is in the Agriculture 
Advisor's office. It has been around for about 15 years; however, last weeks' meeting was the first in-
person meeting since 2016. They have recently appointed about 36 members and had a kick-off meeting 
last week. 
 
At the kick-off meeting, the committee received presentations on the following: 

• EPA's climate adaptation process  
• Water and climate co-benefits 
• Water reuse 
• Biofuels policy 
• GHG inventory and data needs 
• Methane capture 
• Food loss and waste 
• Smart growth for rural communities 
• IRA funding specific to climate change 
• USDA's IRA funding  
• Climate-Smart funding 

 
At end of two days, the FRRCC came up with a list of potential areas for their work over the next year. In 
the next few weeks, the FRRCC will be forming their workgroups, and there may be areas for 
collaboration with EFAB.  
 
Marilyn Waite recommended the joint work done by Adasina Social Capital and the ETC Group, which 
covers the climate and agriculture nexus in depth. She asked if there is room in the current work to 
cover nitrous oxide (N2O) and parts of the supply chain. Rod Snyder replied that N2O came up a lot.  
 
MaryAnna Peavey asked if the FRRCC looked at the value of water in agriculture and climate change and 
how agriculture is changing because of drought. Rod Snyder said emphatically yes; so much water policy 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

16 

is driven at state level. He said the committee is interested in exploring what EPA can do in the water 
availability space, specifically repurposing wastewater for irrigation.  
 
George Kelly asked to what extent agriculture falls in the definition of disadvantaged communities. He 
also asked about the group's potential to weigh in on pesticide regulation and the Endangered Species 
Act (ESA). Lastly, he asked about crop switching to less water-intensive alternatives. Rod Snyder replied 
that the FRRCC has not yet delved into how the Justice40 Initiative (J40) affects agricultural regions, but 
many rural communities would be considered underserved and disadvantaged. On ESA, the committee 
discussed impacts of climate change; there are stressors and crops will need to be protected. Crop 
switching didn't come up, he said, but if there's a water workgroup it will likely come up. 
 
Dave Wegner said the Colorado River basin is in its 23rd year of drought, and more than 80% of its water 
goes to agriculture. Rural communities are stressed. He asked for Rod Snyder's thoughts on smart 
growth for rural communities; small agriculture in particular is threatened. Rod Snyder said the FRRCC's 
chair noted that prime farmland can be repurposed for solar but without concern for how that might 
impact food production. He said an agenda item is how to advance the green economy while ensuring 
agriculture can thrive. There are a lot of other questions to explore.  

White House Environmental Justice Advisory Council (WHEJAC) 
Jalonne White-Newsome said this administration has taken on environmental justice in a way never 
done before and said that the role of the White House Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) is to 
advise the president on environmental issues, including environmental justice. Toward this end, CEQ 
developed the Climate and Environmental Justice Screening Tool (CEJST), which is a geospatial mapping 
tool to identify disadvantaged communities and ensure they receive the benefits of funding. She said 
CEQ will also soon release its Environmental Scorecard, which will also provide a baseline understanding 
of how federal agencies will advance environmental justice. The first iteration of the scorecard will not 
score agencies but will serve to establish a baseline. She said CEQ will also advance the J40 Initiative and 
create culture change so that gains are sustainable. Jalonne White-Newsome also mentioned Executive 
Order 14008 on tackling climate change at home and abroad, which established the White House 
Environmental Justice Interagency Council (IAC) and WHEJAC.  
 
Jalonne White-Newsome explained that WHEJAC advises IAC and CEQ. There are 25 members, 2 chairs, 
and 2 co-chairs. CEQ is currently accepting letters of interest to this council of presidentially appointed 
members. CEQ's role is to connect WHEAJC to the White House and to coordinate with federal partners. 
WHEJAC has four public meetings a year. 
 
Among its successes, WHEJAC provided recommendations on J40, CEJST, and the Environmental 
Scorecard. It also engages the public and amplifies the importance of engagement and education. 
WHEJAC has influence CEQ to undertake activities such as the J40 Week in Action and J40 in Action 
webinars. WHEJAC also raises issues that continue to be brought to public meetings.  
 
There are three near-term goals for the WHEJAC: (1) expand its membership; (2) provide more 
opportunities for WHEJAC and IAC to come together; and (3) create new opportunities for partnerships, 
which includes working with EFAB.  
 
Craig Holland said the GHGRF requires the participation of a lot of stakeholders to get the funding out; 
CEQ could play a key role in bringing people to the table to think through options, similar to the National 
Disaster Resilience Competition.  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

17 

 
Gwen Keyes Fleming asked if there are plans for CEQ to engage the private sector and regulated 
community so they can be a part of the solution. Jalonne White-Newsome said we won't find solutions 
without everyone at the table and will shortly share opportunities. 
 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau asked Jalonne White-Newsome what success looks like for her. Jalonne White-
Newsome said her vision is to embed environmental justice in agencies to the degree that it is no longer 
an afterthought, that there is both sustainability and accountability. 
 
Ed Chu said he will follow up with the WHEJAC DFO for potential collaboration. He asked the group to 
think about possible dates and locations for the next in-person meeting. 
 
 
EFAB Chair's Corner 
Kerry O’Neill | EFAB Chair 
 
Kerry O'Neill observed that a theme in Board discussions has been how to get funding to under-
resourced communities. She asked the members if they felt there was a potential charge to pursue, and 
if so, who might be the EPA client.  
 
Ed Chu said that there is a protocol to identify the FACA's priorities. If there is a project the group is 
interested in pursuing, the Board can submit a letter; alternatively, it can develop a charge and find an 
EPA client. He emphasized that the Board would not want to spend its valuable time working on an issue 
that is not an EPA priority. Craig Holland shared a bit of his challenging experience working on an issue 
without an EPA client that ultimately did not result in a charge. Kerry O'Neill noted the benefits of 
having an engaged EPA client.  
 
Dennis Randolph said the question of how to spread money around is a great idea and he identified a 
couple technical skills needed to get federal funding, such as determining what specific solution could be 
engineered and then having the skills to apply for a grant. He said communities need those skills 
embedded in their communities for sustainability.  
 
Kerry O'Neill added a need for support with compliance and reporting. Craig Holland said that horror 
stories scare people off, but there are more success stories. He noted that one year his organization 
faced seven federal audits, but the organization survived. 
 
Bill Stannard said getting money to underserved communities has been discussed regularly in the water 
space. Given that EPA is conducting needs surveys, he asked if they could find out what is already 
happening. He suggested looking at regional and state levels, as well, and defining the best data to 
establish a baseline.   
 
Kerry O'Neill asked if the scorecard discussed previously would measure where dollars are going. 
 
Sanjiv Sinha said that, with leeway, charge #3 [in the Board meeting materials] might be interpreted to 
include the issue. Ed Chu noted that there are a lot of places in EPA where the charge lands; 
accountability is cross-cutting.  
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

18 

Margot Kane asked how the flow of funds between EPA and communities would be tracked because 
there are government intermediaries at the state, government, and utility levels, as well as NGO 
intermediaries. She said that, because there is no direct line between EPA and a community, 
accountability means tracking at the intermediary level.  
 
Kerry O'Neill noted that "community" could refer to several types of entities, including a group of 
citizens, NGO, utility, or city. 
 
Colleen Kokas said there are a lot of places to start to help get first-time applicants in the door. Applying 
for grants is a difficult hurdle to get over, but existing TA programs are out there that can be tapped.  
 
Gwen Keyes Fleming said the same entities get grants all the time, so incentives must shift to level the 
playing field.  
 
Ed Chu shared that the GHGRF workgroups discussed how certain grants are treated differently; for 
instance, research grants are allotted a lot of leeway for overhead, but grants going to communities may 
be scrutinized on the issue of overhead.  
 
David Zimmer reminded the Board that there are other sources of revenue for communities besides 
federal grants.  
 
 
Summary of Other Potential Charges 
Kerry O'Neill invited discussion about flowing investment to underserved communities. 
 
Angela Bricmont said it offers a unique opportunity to partner across disciplines. 
 
Kerry O'Neill said a couple items on the table from the last meeting were related to water and would be 
discussed later. Another tabled issue was engaging with FRRCC; however, they are not ready yet. The 
issue of environmental risk/cost of capital/environmental, social, and governance (ESG) topic was also 
tabled and a possible role for the Board could be discussed. 
 
Ted Chapman said an exploratory group had looked into whether risks associated with climate change 
was appropriately priced into water financing. Maybe the answer is no, but how do you do it? He said 
finding an EPA client is another challenge.  
 
Kerry O'Neill asked for volunteers to form an exploratory group to look at crosscutting issues related to 
flowing resources to underserved communities. Craig Holland noted the absolute necessity to think 
about intermediaries, as EPA has unprecedented amounts of money to get out. Ed Chu said the CFO's 
office may be an interested client. Kerry O'Neill said Office of Environmental Justice and External Civil 
Rights (OEJECR) could potentially be a co-client.  
 
Dennis Randolph said there is a nice opportunity to work on the exploratory group look for connections 
to work with NEJAC. 
 
Sonja Favors expressed interest, as did Margo Kane and Jeff Diehl. David Zimmer will advise.  
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

19 

 
Introduction to Board Breakout Discussions on Proposed Water Charges 
Kerry O'Neill turned the discussion to proposed water charges. Office of Water had proposed the 
following nine charges in October:  

1. SRF subsidies for neighborhoods or households in need 
2. Effective utilization of water infrastructure and investments 
3. Improving efficiency of implementing EPA funding 
4. Sustainable technical assistance 
5. Decentralized water systems operation and maintenance 
6. Community assistance programs 
7. BIL section 50108 needs assessment 
8. Rate structuring 
9. Municipal bond indebtedness 

 
Tara Johnson reported that exploratory workgroup members are: 

• Cynthia Koehler, co-chair 
• Dennis Randolph 
• Jeff Diehl 
• MaryAnna Peavey 
• Courtney Black  
• Ted Chapman 
• Bill Stannard 
• Angela Bricmont 
• Dave Wegner 
• Phyllis Garcia 
• Lawrence Lujan 
• Janet Clements, co-chair 
• Matt Brown 
• Margot Kane 
• Zach Davidson 
• David Zimmer 
• Al Cho 
• Eric Rothstein 

 
Janet Clements said the group's task is to reduce or synthesize charges and come back to the Board with 
recommendations about what to pursue. That is their goal for the work in the afternoon. 
 
Kerry O'Neill reminded the exploratory committee that there is a lot of flexibility allowed in crafting 
charges.  
 
Ed Chu said he will email the standard operating procedures (SOP) on charges to the Board.  
 
Kerry O'Neill said EFAB members who are not on the exploratory committee will have opportunities to 
join workgroups. 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

20 

Gwen Yamamoto Lau moved that the EFAB set up an exploratory workgroup on the flow of investments 
to low-income and disadvantaged communities; Lori Collins seconded. Kerry O'Neill asked for a voice 
vote, and the motion adopted.  
 
Adjourn 
Ed Chu adjourned the meeting. 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

21 

Day 3 
Welcome and Roll Call 
Edward H. Chu, EFAB DFO, welcomed members back. 
 
Kerry O’Neil, EFAB Chair, took role call and recapped the previous two days. 
 
 
Roll Call
Ashley Allen Jones, present 
Courtney L. Black, present 
Steven J. Bonafonte, present 
Angela Montoya Bricmont, present 
Matthew T. Brown, present 
Stacy Brown, present 
Theodore Chapman, present 
Albert Cho, present 
Janet Clements, present 
Lori Collins, present 
Zachary Davidson, present 
Jeffrey R. Diehl, not present 
Sonja B. Favors, not present 
Phyllis R. Garcia, present 
Eric Hangen, not present 
Edward Henifin, not present 
Barry Hersh, present 
Craig Holland, not present 

Craig A. Hrinkevich, present 
Margot Kane, present 
Thomas Karol, not present 
George W. Kelly, present 
Gwendolyn Keyes Fleming, present 
Cynthia Koehler, present 
Colleen Kokas, present 
Joanne V. Landau, not present 
Lawrence Lujan, not present 
MaryAnna H. Peavey, present 
Dennis A. Randolph, present 
Eric Rothstein, present 
Sanjiv Sinha, not present 
William Stannard, present 
Marilyn Waite, present 
David L. Wegner, not present 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau, present 
David Zimmer, present 

 
 
Proposed Water Charges 
Cynthia Koehler and Janet Clements | Exploratory Workgroup Co-chairs 
 
Cynthia Koehler reported that the group concurs that the charges should help EPA do something 
powerful or transformative with the new funding, address the growing national challenge of water 
affordability, and ensure effective and sustainable TA mechanisms, which are critical to disadvantaged 
communities. Through those lenses, the group narrowed the nine potential topics to two broad topics: 

1. Equitable water affordability measures (Janet Clements, chair) 
2. Assessing SRF effectiveness, will address charges 2–4 from EPA's original list (Cynthia Koehler, 

chair) 
 
Once those charges are more refined, the exploratory workgroups will bring them back to the larger 
body for a vote. 
 
Regarding equitable water affordability, Janet Clements said the subgroup does not have exact language 
yet but are looking deeper into EPA's original charges 6 and 8, which are about identifying best practice 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

22 

for customer assistance programs and looking into how communities fund those programs, as well as 
funding approaches and potential for SRF financing. This overlaps a little with EPA's charge 1 and will be 
looked at as a part of affordability. Charge 8 is concerned with rate structures, best practices, and what 
can be done within the boundaries of state regulations.  
 
Cynthia Koehler believes there will be a proposal within the next couple of months for the larger group 
to consider. The exploratory workgroup wants to be as engaged as possible with the EPA client. A real 
focus for EPA client is the BIL money, and EPA will help the group understand BIL requirements.  
 
Kerry O'Neill said there is an art to developing a charge, the give and take, member expertise, and client; 
ebb and flow takes time. Ed Chu said that this phase is to really ensure that what the client is looking for 
is compatible with the EFAB's expertise. He said that the next step is to bring the charges to the Board 
for a vote, and the Board would need to have the document prior to that meeting. Cynthia Koehler 
iterated that they expect to have a charge in the next few months.  
 
Kerry O'Neill asked for an update from Gwen Keyes Fleming.  
 
Gwen Keyes Fleming said the exploratory workgroup is taking a stepwise fashion to drafting a charge on 
how EPA can facilitate getting new and existing funding to communities in need in the most efficient and 
effective way. They identified possible EPA clients, including the CFO's Office, and expanding discussion 
to include OEJECR, CEQ, DOE, and HUD. She said they also talked about improving the way the word gets 
to communities about funding availability, improving community capacity, and addressing accountability 
barriers. She said the group had several questions that they will raise in discussion with clients. The next 
step is to draft charge questions and get preliminary feedback before finalizing a charge.  
 
Ed Chu iterated the timeline and is hoping to have a charge ready for a virtual meeting.  
 
Cynthia Koehler said she wanted to be sure exploratory groups are coordinating closely to avoid 
repeated effort since, in some cases, the workgroups have framed their concerns identically. Gwen 
Keyes Fleming agreed there would be opportunities to have complementary recommendations. Ed Chu 
said the scope of the charge questions could be coordinated early on. Kerry O'Neill said coordinating 
with NEJAC may be possible. Ed Chu said where there is overlap, the Board could narrow its work to 
what the group's strengths are. He said the CFO's office will have to be involved given the focus on 
accountability.  
 
Kerry O'Neill said this was an extraordinarily productive meeting and thanked members for their service. 
 
 
 
Public Comment 
See appendix 6 for written public comments submitted to date. Additional comments will be provided 
on website. 
 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

23 

DFO Final Thoughts 
Ed Chu reminded everyone that they hope to have the next meeting outside the Washington, D.C. 
Beltway to ensure broader participation of the public in other parts of the country. Ideally one of the 
Board members can host and provide other activities. He asked the group to email ideas. 
 
Kerry O'Neill also asked for dates that don't work for the group. She thanked members and those cycling 
out. 
 
 
Adjourn 
Ed Chu adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

24 

Appendix 1. Federal Register Announcement 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

25 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

26 

Appendix 2. Agenda 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

27 

 

 

  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

28 

 

Appendix 3. EFAB Members 
 

Ed Chu, Designated Federal Officer 
Tara Johnson, Alternate Designated Federal Officer 

 
NAME 

 
AFFILIATION 

 
LOCATION PERSPECTIVE 

REPRESENTED 
CURRENT 
TERM 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMEN

T DATE 
Kerry O’Neill, 
EFAB Chair 

Chief Executive Officer, 
Inclusive Prosperity 
Capital, Inc. 

Stamford, 
Connecticut 
(EPA Region 1) 

Environmental/ 
Non-
governmental 
Organization 

July 20, 2021–
June 15, 2023 

July 28, 2020 

Ashley Allen Jones Founder and Chief 
Executive Officer, i2 
Capital 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Courtney L. Black Deputy Finance 
Director, City of Kent 

Kent, Washington 
(EPA Region 10) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Steven J. Bonafonte Assistant District 
Counsel, The 
Metropolitan District 
of Hartford 

Hartford, 
Connecticut 
(EPA Region 1) 

Legal June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Angela Montoya 
Bricmont 

Chief Finance Officer, 
Denver Water 

Denver, Colorado 
(EPA Region 8) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Matthew T. Brown Chief Financial Officer 
and EVP, Finance and 
Procurement, District 
of Columbia Water and 
Sewer Authority 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Stacy Brown President and Chief 
Executive Officer, 
Freberg 
Environmental, Inc. 

Denver, Colorado 
(EPA Region 8) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Theodore Chapman Investment Banking 
Analyst, Hilltop 
Securities, Inc. 

Dallas, Texas 
(EPA Region 6) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

September 25, 
2017 

Albert Cho Senior Vice President, 
Chief Strategy and 
Digital Officer, Xylem, 
Inc. 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Janet Clements President and 
Founder, One Water 
Econ 

Loveland, Colorado 
(EPA Region 8) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Lori Collins Owner and Principal, 
Collins Climate 
Consulting 

Charlotte, North 
Carolina 
(EPA Region 4) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

29 

 
NAME 

 
AFFILIATION 

 
LOCATION PERSPECTIVE 

REPRESENTED 
CURRENT 
TERM 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMEN

T DATE 
Zachary Davidson Director of 

Underwriting, 
Ecosystem Investment 
Partners 

Baltimore, 
Maryland  
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Jeffrey R. Diehl Chief Executive Officer, 
Rhode Island 
Infrastructure Bank 

Providence, Rhode 
Island 
(EPA Region 1) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Sonja B. Favors Industrial Hazardous 
Waste Branch Chief, 
Alabama Department 
on Environmental 
Management 

Montgomery, 
Alabama  
(EPA Region 4) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Phyllis R. Garcia Treasurer, San Antonio 
Water 
System 

San Antonio, Texas 
(EPA Region 6) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Eric Hangen Senior Research 
Fellow, Center for 
Impact Finance, Carsey 
School of Public Policy, 
University of New 
Hampshire 

Danby, Vermont 
(EPA Region 1) 

Academic June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Edward Henifin General Manager 
(retired), Hampton 
Roads Sanitation 
District 

Virginia Beach, 
Virginia  
(EPA Region 3) 

State/Local 
Government 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

June 15, 2018 

Barry Hersh Clinical Professor and 
MSRED Chair, School 
of Professional Studies, 
New York University 

New York, New 
York (EPA Region 2) 

Academic June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Craig Holland Senior Director of 
Urban Investments, 
The Nature 
Conservancy 

Arlington, Virginia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Environmental/ 
Non-
governmental 
Organization 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

September 25, 
2017 

Craig A. Hrinkevich Public Finance Team – 
New Jersey Managing 
Director, Robert W. 
Baird & Company, Inc. 

Red Bank, New 
Jersey  
(EPA Region 2) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Margot Kane Chief Investment 
Officer, Spring Point 
Partners LLC 

Philadelphia, 
Pennsylvania 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 – 
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Thomas Karol General Counsel 
Federal, National 
Association of Mutual 
Insurance Companies 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Legal June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

George W. Kelly Global Client Strategy 
Officer, 
Earth Recovery 

Denver, Colorado 
(EPA Region 8) 

Business – 
Financial 
Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

30 

 
NAME 

 
AFFILIATION 

 
LOCATION PERSPECTIVE 

REPRESENTED 
CURRENT 
TERM 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMEN

T DATE 
Partners 

Gwendolyn Keyes 
Fleming 

Partner, DLA Piper LLP Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Legal June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Cynthia Koehler Executive Director, 
WaterNow Alliance 

San Francisco, 
California 
(EPA Region 9) 

Environmental/ 
Non-
governmental 
Organization 

June 21, 2022 – 
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Colleen Kokas Executive Vice 
President, 
Environmental Liability 
Transfer, 
Inc. 

Lahaska, 
Pennsylvania 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Joanne V. Landau President and Chief 
Investment Officer, 
Kurtsam Realty Corp. 

Croton-on-Hudson, 
New York  
(EPA Region 2) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Lawrence Lujan Executive Director, 
Taos Public 
Utility Service 

Taos, New Mexico 
(EPA Region 6) 

Tribal 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

MaryAnna H. Peavey Grants and Loans 
Bureau Supervisory, 
Idaho Department 
of Environmental 
Quality 

Boise, Idaho  
(EPA Region 10) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Dennis A. Randolph City Traffic Engineer, 
City of Kalamazoo 
Public Services 
Department 

Kalamazoo, 
Michigan 
(EPA Region 5) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Eric Rothstein Principal, Galardi 
Rothstein Group 

Montreat, North 
Carolina 
(EPA Region 4) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

September 25, 
2017 

Sanjiv Sinha Chief Sustainability 
Officer, Environmental 
Consulting & 
Technology, Inc. 

Ann Arbor, 
Michigan  
(EPA Region 5) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

William Stannard Chairman of the Board,  
 
RAFTELIS 

Kansas City, 
Missouri 
(EPA Region 7) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

June 15, 2018 

Marilyn Waite Managing Director, 
Climate Finance Fund 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

31 

 
NAME 

 
AFFILIATION 

 
LOCATION PERSPECTIVE 

REPRESENTED 
CURRENT 
TERM 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMEN

T DATE 
David L. Wegner Senior Consultant on 

Water, Climate 
Change, and Asset Risk 
Assessment, Water 
Science and 
Technology Board, 
National Academy of 
Sciences 

Tucson, Arizona 
(EPA Region 9) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Gwen Yamamoto Lau Executive Director, 
Hawaii Green 
Infrastructure Authority 

Honolulu, Hawaii 
(EPA Region 9) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

David Zimmer Executive Director, New 
Jersey Infrastructure 
Bank 

Lawrenceville, New 
Jersey  
(EPA Region 2) 

State/Local 
Government 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

June 15, 2018 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

32 

Appendix 4. Creating Resilient Water Utilities Initiative Slides 
 

 
 

 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

33 

 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

34 

 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

35 

 
 

 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

36 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

37 

Appendix 5. NEJAC Slides 
 

 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

38 

 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

39 

 
 

 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

40 

 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

41 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

42 

Appendix 6. Written Public Comment 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

43 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

44 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

45 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

46 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

47 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

48 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

49 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

50 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

51 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

52 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

53 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

54 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

55 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

56 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

57 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

58 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

59 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

60 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

61 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

62 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Jan. 24–26, 2023  | 
 

63 

 
 
 


	Purpose
	Welcome, Member Roll Call, and Review of Agenda
	Welcome
	Roll Call

	EFAB Member Recognition
	Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Charge Update
	Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Program Update
	Welcome From EPA’s Chief Financial Officer and EPA Budget Update
	Update On Other Recent EFAB Charge Deliverables
	Opportunity Zones
	Pollution Prevention
	Stormwater Task Force

	State Revolving Fund Update Briefing
	Creating Resilient Water Utilities Initiative
	Adjourn
	Welcome and Roll Call
	Roll Call

	EPA FACA Coordination
	National Environmental Justice Advisory Committee (NEJAC)
	Farm, Ranch, and Rural Communities Committee (FRRCC)
	White House Environmental Justice Advisory Council (WHEJAC)

	EFAB Chair's Corner
	Summary of Other Potential Charges
	Introduction to Board Breakout Discussions on Proposed Water Charges
	Adjourn
	Welcome and Roll Call
	Roll Call

	Proposed Water Charges
	Public Comment
	DFO Final Thoughts
	Adjourn
	Appendix 1. Federal Register Announcement
	Appendix 2. Agenda
	Appendix 3. EFAB Members
	Appendix 4. Creating Resilient Water Utilities Initiative Slides
	Appendix 5. NEJAC Slides
	Appendix 6. Written Public Comment



